

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTY-SIXTH LEGISLATURE

FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
August 29, 2013

SECOND REGULAR SESSION
January 8, 2014 to May 2, 2014

THE EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
EMERGENCY LAW IS
SEPTEMBER 6, 2013

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
SECOND REGULAR SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
AUGUST 1, 2014

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

Augusta, Maine
2014

ment of a mill rate and the levy of the Unorganized Territory Educational and Services Tax; and

Whereas, in the judgment of the Legislature, these facts create an emergency within the meaning of the Constitution of Maine and require the following legislation as immediately necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety; now, therefore,

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. Municipal cost components for services rendered. In accordance with the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 36, chapter 115, the Legislature determines that the net municipal cost component for services and reimbursements to be rendered in fiscal year 2014-15 is as follows:

Audit - Fiscal Administration	\$219,722
Education	12,022,813
Forest Fire Protection	150,000
Human Services - General Assistance	55,750
Property Tax Assessment - Operations	1,031,852
Maine Land Use Planning Commission - Operations	523,019
TOTAL STATE AGENCIES	\$14,003,156
County Reimbursements for Services:	
Aroostook	\$1,042,847
Franklin	991,854
Hancock	320,363
Kennebec	11,831
Oxford	1,185,959
Penobscot	1,020,403
Piscataquis	990,627
Somerset	1,441,824
Washington	839,105
TOTAL COUNTY SERVICES	\$7,844,813
COUNTY TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRIBUTIONS FROM FUND	
Tax Increment Financing Payments	\$3,100,000

TOTAL REQUIREMENTS	\$24,947,969
COMPUTATION OF ASSESSMENT	
Requirements	\$24,947,969
Less Deductions:	
General -	
State Revenue Sharing	\$100,000
Homestead Reimbursement	94,538
Miscellaneous Revenues	70,000
Transfer from undesignated fund balance	2,300,000
TOTAL GENERAL DEDUCTIONS	\$2,564,538
Educational -	
Land Reserved Trust	\$70,000
Tuition/Travel	105,077
United States Forestry Payment in Lieu of Taxes	0
Special - Teacher Retirement	148,378
TOTAL EDUCATION DEDUCTIONS	\$323,455
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS	\$2,887,993
TAX ASSESSMENT	\$22,059,976

Emergency clause. In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, this legislation takes effect when approved.

Effective April 5, 2014.

CHAPTER 523

H.P. 1304 - L.D. 1817

An Act To Amend the Law Concerning the State Cost-share Program for Salt and Sand Storage Facilities

Emergency preamble. Whereas, acts and resolves of the Legislature do not become effective until 90 days after adjournment unless enacted as emergencies; and

Whereas, the construction of salt and sand storage facilities is important for the protection of groundwater; and

Whereas, the Department of Transportation currently has funding available to assist municipalities and counties with the construction of salt and sand storage facilities; and

Whereas, sufficient time is needed for those eligible municipalities and counties to go through a public process to decide if grants from the Department of Transportation should be used in conjunction with local money to construct salt and sand storage facilities; and

Whereas, in the judgment of the Legislature, these facts create an emergency within the meaning of the Constitution of Maine and require the following legislation as immediately necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety; now, therefore,

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 23 MRSA §1851, as repealed and replaced by PL 1999, c. 387, §1 and affected by §7, is amended to read:

§1851. State cost-share program for salt and sand storage facilities

The Department of Transportation may administer funds for the construction of municipal or county salt and sand storage facilities in order to reduce salt pollution of ground and surface waters. In administering these funds, the department shall provide reimbursement to municipal and county governmental entities for approved projects in the following order, according to priorities established pursuant to Title 38, section 414:

1. Priority 1 projects. Priority 1 projects, as long as the site was registered with the Department of Environmental Protection pursuant to Title 38, section 413 before October 15, 1997, regardless of the date the priority rating was designated;

2. Priority 2 projects. Priority 2 projects, as long as the site was registered with the Department of Environmental Protection pursuant to Title 38, section 413 before October 15, 1997, regardless of the date the priority rating was designated;

3. Priority 3 projects. Priority 3 projects that were designated before October 15, 1997 and continue to be so designated on April 1, 2000 and Priority 3 projects designated on April 1, 2000 that were designated Priority 5 projects prior to October 15, 1997; and

4. Priority 4 projects. Priority 4 projects that were constructed before November 1, 1999 with plans and financial information submitted to the Department of Transportation by November 1, 1999. Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, 20% of all funds authorized by the Legislature after January 1, 1999 for municipal reimbursement of sand and salt

storage facility construction costs must be used to reimburse municipalities with Priority 4 projects eligible under this subsection until all such eligible projects have been fully reimbursed. The department shall reimburse municipalities eligible under this subsection in the order in which those municipalities complete the submission of all required documentation;

5. Priority changes. Priority 3 projects designated on April 1, 2000 that were designated Priority 4 projects as of October 15, 1997;

6. Priority 5 projects. Priority 5 projects that were constructed before November 1, 1999, with plans and financial information submitted to the Department of Transportation by November 1, 1999;

7. Other projects. All other projects eligible for reimbursement. Priority 4 and Priority 5 sites designated on April 1, 2000 are not eligible for reimbursement.

Allocation of funds must be based upon the sum of 25% of the expenses permitted plus 1.25 times the ratio of miles of state and state aid roads maintained for winter maintenance, as described in sections 1001 and 1003, to all miles maintained for winter maintenance by the municipality, quasi-municipal agency or county. The Department of Transportation shall establish guidelines to reimburse eligible local government entities in a consistent and timely manner.

The Department of Transportation shall review and approve municipal and county plans and specifications pursuant to established departmental guidelines for design, construction and size before a municipality or county constructs a facility. Municipal actions inconsistent with such guidelines are reimbursed at the sole discretion of the department.

Reimbursable expenses under this section do not include land acquisition or debt service.

Sec. 2. 23 MRSA §1852, as amended by PL 1999, c. 387, §2, is repealed.

Sec. 3. 38 MRSA §451-A, sub-§1-A, as amended by PL 1999, c. 387, §5, is further amended to read:

1-A. Time schedule for salt and sand-salt storage program. An owner or operator of a salt or sand-salt storage area is not in violation of any groundwater classification or reclassification adopted on or after January 1, 1980 with respect to discharges to the groundwater from those facilities, if the owner or operator has completed all steps required to be completed by the schedules set forth in this subchapter. The commissioner shall administer this schedule according to the project priority list adopted by the board pursuant to section 411 and the provisions of this subsection. A municipal or county site classified as Priority 4 or Priority 5 as of April 1, 2000, which was registered pursuant to section 413 prior to October 15,

1997, ~~may is~~ not be in violation of any groundwater classification or reclassification with respect to discharges to the groundwater from those facilities.

A. Preliminary notice for municipal and county Priority 3 projects must be completed and submitted to the Department of Transportation ~~by the following dates:~~ within 2 months of receipt of a certified letter from the Department of Transportation notifying the municipality or county of funds available for the construction of a facility.

~~(1) For Priority 1 and 2 projects, the latest of the following dates:~~

- ~~(a) One year from a designation under section 411;~~
- ~~(b) One year from notice of availability of a state grant, if eligible; or~~
- ~~(c) January 1996.~~

~~(2) For municipal, state and county Priority 3 projects, the later of the following dates:~~

- ~~(a) One year from notice of availability of a state grant, if eligible; or~~
- ~~(b) January 2003.~~

~~(3) For other Priority 3 projects, the later of the following dates:~~

- ~~(a) One year from a designation under section 411; or~~
- ~~(b) January 1997.~~

D. For municipal and county ~~sites only~~ Priority 3 projects, review of final plans with the Department of Transportation must be completed within ~~12 14~~ months of ~~the dates established in paragraph A for each priority category~~ receipt of a certified letter from the Department of Transportation notifying the municipality or county of funds available for the construction of a facility.

E. Construction of municipal and county Priority 3 projects must be completed and the facility ~~must be~~ in operation within ~~24 26~~ months of ~~the dates established in paragraph A for each priority category~~ receipt of a certified letter from the Department of Transportation notifying the municipality or county of funds available for the construction of a facility.

In no case may violations of the lowest groundwater classification be allowed. In addition, no violations of any groundwater classifications adopted after January 1, 1980, may be allowed for more than ~~3 years~~ 26 months from the date of an offer of a state grant for the construction of those facilities.

The department may not issue time schedule variances under subsection 1 to owners or operators of salt or sand-salt storage areas.

An owner or operator of a salt or sand-salt storage area who is in compliance with this section is exempt from the requirements of licensing under section 413, subsection 2-D.

An owner or operator is not in violation of a schedule established pursuant to this subsection if the owner or operator is eligible for a state grant to implement the schedule and the state grant is not available.

Sec. 4. Report. By January 1, 2017, the Department of Transportation shall provide a report to the joint standing committee of the Legislature having jurisdiction over transportation matters on the status of providing funding under the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 23, section 1851 for the construction of salt and sand storage facilities in municipalities and counties with Priority 3 projects and providing reimbursement for qualified Priority 5 projects. The department shall consult with the Department of Environmental Protection, when appropriate, to identify those provisions of law governing project funding that are unnecessary and no longer relevant because all funding has been completed and shall include in the report suggested legislation making the recommended changes. The joint standing committee of the Legislature having jurisdiction over transportation matters may submit a bill to the First Regular Session of the 128th Legislature related to the recommendations in the department's report.

Emergency clause. In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, this legislation takes effect when approved.

Effective April 5, 2014.

CHAPTER 524

S.P. 656 - L.D. 1662

**An Act To Clarify the Law
Governing the Maintenance of
Veterans' Grave Sites**

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 13 MRSA §1101, as repealed and replaced by PL 2013, c. 421, §1, is amended to read:

§1101. Maintenance and repairs; municipality

1. Grave sites of veterans in ancient burying grounds. In any ancient burying ground, as referenced in Title 30-A, section 5723, the municipality in which that burying ground is located, in collaboration with veterans' organizations, cemetery associations, civic and fraternal organizations and other interested persons, shall keep in good condition all graves, headstones, monuments and markers ~~and, to~~ designating the burial place of Revolutionary soldiers and sailors